CHAPTER IX,
THE GIRLS’ GRAMMAR SCHOOL.

WIITL first of the old trusts dealt with by the commissioners
under Mr. Forster's Endowed Schools Act of 1870, was the
Free Grammar School of Charles II. at Bradford. In the

. scheme drawn up by the commissioners for the management
of the boys’ school, two of the clauses run as follows :—* This foundation
shall consist of two branches, one for the education of boys, and the
other for the education of girls.”

“From and after the date of this scheme, or within three years from
such date, the governors shall appropriate the annual sum of {200,
and on the determination or failure of the pension hereafter contem-
plated for the present schoolmaster or that assigned to the late usher,
the further sum of £s50, for the establishment and maintenance of a
girls’ school, and such school shall be organised, supported, and
managed in accordance with directions to be hereafter set forth in a
supplementary scheme.” The supplementary scheme here alluded to
was drafted, after careful consideration, by the committee of the Ladies’
Educational Association; and it is mainly to this committee that
Bradford is indebted for the Girls’ Grammar School. It was felt, how-
ever, that the endowment allotted to the girls by the Commission was
insufficient for the establishment of a first-grade school, and therefore
the ladies and gentlemen most interested in the movement raised
subscriptions to the amount of £5000, through the generosity of
the leading men of Bradford, notably Sir Titus Salt, Bart.,, Henry
Brown, Esq., and Isaac Holden, Esq. With this sum they bought, in
June, 1873, the premises, then the property of Mr. Watson, at the
corner of Hallfield Road, and presented them to the commissioners to
be added to the trust.

It was not until July, 1873, that the building actually passed into the
hands of the governors, but by dint of great energy it was, in two
months, adapted for the purposes required, at a cost of .£zoooc, which
was paid by subscription before the end of the year.
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The need for such a school, and the appreciation of its value by the
people of Bradford were shown by the following notice, issued to parents
in the newspaper :—“The number of pupils entered for the ensuing
term is so large that no further entries can now be made.” And this
was the way in which Bradford came to be the first place in the country
to establish a first-grade endowed Girls’ Grammar School.

Miss Porter, from the Chelsea High School, was appointed head-
mistress, and the school was opened on September 27th, 1875, with 112
girls, and four assistant mistresses. The school was formally opened
on the morning of Wednesday, September zgth, by Lady Frederick
Cavendish ; Henry Brown, Es(., occupied the chair, and Lord Frederick
Cavendish, W. E. Forster, Esq., M. P.,the Rev. W. H. Keeling, M. A., Robert
Kell, Esq., W. E. Glyde, Esq., and Miss Porter addressed the meeting. In
the course of hisspeech, Mr, Forster, after referring to the great educational
advantages which have recently been extended to women, said: “I
should be very glad if I should have the great honour of sending the
first scholar to one of these colleges which have been established at
Cambridge.” In the evening a public meeting was held in St. George’s
Hall. The Mayor, Henry Mitchell, Esq., presided, and addresses were
delivered by Sir Matthew Wilson, Bart, W. E. Forster, Esq., M.P.,
Dr. Hodgson (Professor of Political Economy at the University of
Edinburgh), John Morley, Esq. (Editor of the Fortnightly Review),
R. Kell, Esq., and F. S. Powell, Esq.

Mr. Forster moved :—

“That this meeting views with satisfaction the establishment of a
public day school for girls in Bradford, and is convinced that it will
supply a want long felt in this district, by bringing a first-class education
‘within the reach of many families by whom it has hitherto been
unattainable.”

He congratulated the governors on having got a share of the endow
ment of the Grammar School foundation, but said that he did not think
the interference of the Endowed Schools Commission ought to have
been necessary to obtain it, for the charter granted by Charles IL to
the Bradford school provided that the school should be “established for
ever for the better teaching and bringing up of children and youth in
grammar and other good learning and literature.”

Mr. Powell, at the conclusicn of his speech, remarked: “Success is
absolutely sure, because that which Bradford has begun, Bradford will
undoubtedly, in steadfastness and earnestness of purpose, carry to a
successful issue.”

During the first term the school, no doubt was closely watched, and
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its progress apparently gave satisfaction, for, at the beginning of 1876,
sixty new pupils entered, and three new classes were formed,

Already scholarships for the Grammar School had been offered, one
by Henry Brown, Esq., and two by the governors, to be competed for
by pupils in the elementary schools ; and, in 1876, Sir Titus Salt, Bart.,
and subsequently Henry Brown, Iisq., established two scholarships,
each of the annual value of £100, to enable girls from the Grammar
School to carry on their studies at the colleges for the higher education
of women,

These scholarships are open to competition by all girls in the VL
Form, who have been in the school three years, and the award is made
upon the result of the Midsummer Examination. Two have been
awarded yearly since 1878, as follows :

1878 Jessie Sallitt—Forster Scholar.
‘Hannah Lister.
1879 "Marion Greenwood.

‘Kate ‘T'ennant.
1880 *Gertrude McCroben.
“Fannie Gwyther.
1881 “Bertha Bell.
“Lillie Sallitt.
1882 Rosa Womersley
M. A. Byles y } Postponed.

. Newnham College, Cambridge. 2. Girton College, Cambridge,

. Girton College, Cambridge, 4. Newnham Cullege, Cambridge,

. WNewnham College, Cambridge. 6. Somerville Hall, Oxfor .

. Somerville Hall, Oxford. 8. Bloomsbury School of Art, London,

There has not yet been time to gain many College Honours, but the
school has reason to be proud of its first laurels. Marion Greenwood
has passed the First Part of the Natural Science Tripos in the First
Class; Hannah Lister the Mathematical Tripos with 3rd class Honours,
and other distinctions will be found in the footnotes to the list of
pupils in the appendix.

In 1880 the governors of the Girls' Grammar School adopted a
memorial appealing to the Syndicate appointed by the University of
Cambridge, to grant degrees to women as well as to men ; and we hope
that the day is not far distant when this will be done.

At Christmas, 1880, Miss Porter left Bradford to take the head-
mi resship of the Girls’ High School at Douglas, Isle of Man, and she
has since become principal of the Bedford Girls’ School. She was
followed by Miss Lee, from Burton-on-Trent, who only remained six
months, and was succeeded by Miss Stocker, the present headmistress,

The course of the school since its commencement seven years ago,

Sy M
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has been one of very gratifying prosperity, and we look forward with
hope and confidence to a very bright future, having already begun
to fulfil the prophecy of seven years ago :—

“Tt seems to us quite probable that those among us who at the
distance of many years shall look back upon this time, will regard

yesterday (the Opening Day) as one of the brightest days in the history
of Bradford.”
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ments had been made for the pensioning of the Head and Second
Masters, the present Head Master, the Rev. W. H. Keeling, M.A.
was appointed in November, 1871, being selected from 135 candidates.
~ The following facts about our Head Master will be found interesting:.
Born on February 8th, 1840, at Blackley, Manchester, where his
father, the Rev. W. R. Keeling was Rector, in due time he proceeded
to Wadham College, Oxford, where he took a First Class in
Moderations and a Second Class in Literae Humaniores. After holding
the appointments of Sixth Form Master at Bromsgrove and Rossall,
he was elected Head Master of the Northampton Grammar School in
1867. While at Northampton he married Henrietta Frances, young-
est danghter of the Rev. Sydney Gedge, M.A., Vicar of All Saints'
Northampton, and formerly Fellow of St. Catherine’s College, Cambridge.

The new School was opened in January, 1872, and occupied
temporarily the old High School in Hallfield Road. Twenty-five boys
were taken over from the old school, and the number of pupils slowly
increased until the new buildings, erected at a cost of upwards of
£13,000, were entered upon in June, 1873. After that date the
School grew rapidly, and for the last eight years has never numbered
fewer than 300 boys. At the present time there are about 360 pupils
with a staff of twelve masters, including nine graduates. In 1874, a
Gymnasium was built, by public subseription, at the cost of about
£3,000, and in raising this money the Head Master was assisted by
Mr. V. Sichel and Mxr. J. 8. Bacchus. The largest contributors were
the late Sir Titus Salt, Mr. Henry Mitchell, and the late Sir L. W.
Ripley. In 1873, the late Mr. Henry Brown, one of the most muni-
ficent benefactors DBradford has yet had, endowed the School with
£6,000 to be expended in Scholarships. The late Sir Titus Salt,
equally well known for his large-hearted liberality, gave £5,000 for a
like purpose in 1873. After a time, it was found that the building
erected in 1874 was in many respects ill-adapted to the requirements
of the School, the class-room accommodation being especially incon-
venient, and the rooms set apart for Laboratory and Art purposes
being on too small a scale. Accordingly additions were made in 1878,
at a further cost of £10,083. There is now ample provision of
every kind, together with complete appliances for 500 boys. In
January of 1882 an important change was made in the organization of
the School, Hitherto, Latin had been compulsory, and the education
given was a compromise between a classical and a modern education.
It was found, however, that this was a system ill-adapted to the
requirements of the town, especially for boys who had not been well
grounded in Latin from an emrly age, and if was found necessary to
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meet the opinion which is growing in strength every year, that equal
culture can be imparted in a modern course, while a modern course is
more immediately useful for boys who are intended for business or for
any but the learned professions. At the present time, therefore, the
School affords two distinet courses of education, one classical and the
other modern, and in the latter, modern languages, science, mathematics,
and extra lessons in English take the place of Latin and Greek.

One of the chief objects which the promoters of the reformed School
had in view, was the revival of the connection between Bradford and
the Universities. This had, in fact, almost died out, and a Bradford
boy at Oxford or Cambridge was a rara avis. Within the last nine
years about sixty boys have gone to the University, and af the present
time there are twenty-one boys in residence at Oxford and Cambridge.
In addition to the impetus that this movement derived from the right
which the School had of competing for the valuable Lady Hastings'
Exhibition (worth £00 a year for 5 years) at Queen’s College, Oxford,
much additional help has been given by the Brown and Salt Scholar-
ships, and to these three sources the School has been largely indebted
for the increase of its University Students. Many valuable scholar-
ships and exhibitions have likewise been won in open competition
with other schools, by Bradford boys, who now hold scholarships
amounting to £1150 a year. These scholarships have been gained
not only for classies, but also for proficiency in more modern subjects
such as mathematies, science and history.

In addition to the endowments already named, the School has been
much indebted to the Right Honourable W, X, Forster, M.T., for an
annual prize of Three Pounds, to be awarded for proficiency in history,
as well as for a Scholarship of £20 a year open to boys from Elemen-
tary Schools. The late Sir H. 'W. Ripley, Bart., also gave £500 to be
expended in Scholarships for the promotion of Science.

The School now ranks as one of the leading Schools of the country.
Tor some years it has competed with the great Public Schools in the
certificate examinations of the Oxford and Cambridge Schools Ex-
amination Board, and if all the particulars were accessible it would
probably be seen that no other School has done uniformly so well
during all these years. Buf, as it is, sufficient particulars have been
published to shew that the Bradford Grammar School is second to none
in modern subjects and has few superiors even in Classics and Mathe-
maties, although it has challenged comparison with schools which have
been famous for centuries and have almost unlimited resources at their
command, and not only has the School been a success in itself, but as
Dr, Percival, a high authority, has said, it has helped to accelerate the




















































































































































































